



The NuPrime Evolution Stream is a high-performance music server that seamlessly integrates with HiFi systems and supports multiple streaming services. Compatible with Roon Core and DLNA, it can be managed through the VitOS Manager app.

EVOLUTION-STREAM

### Table of Contents

FCC Notice - Declaration of Conformity Information 2	
EU Declaration of Conformity	
Safety Instructions	
Designed for Uncompromized Audio Performance	
Front Panel 10	)
System Setup13	;
Advanced Connection Diagram14	ł
Use Mobile Device to Control Evolution Stream16	5
How to use HQPlayer NAA for Evolution Stream 22	2
How To Use Roon Server on Evolution Stream	3
How to use the Orbiter Plugin for Evolution Stream	)
How to use Spotify Connect on Evolution Stream	, +
How To Use DLNA Renderer on Evolution Stream	3
NuPrime's Limited Warranty and Limitation of Liabilities52	2

www.nuprimeaudio.com



### NUPR i ME

#### FCC Notice - Declaration of Conformity Information

This equipment has been tested and found to comply with the limits for a Class B digital device, pursuant to part 15 of the FCC Rules. These limits are designed to provide reasonable protection against harmful interference in a residential installation. This equipment uses and can radiate radio frequency energy and, if not installed and used in accordance with the instructions, may cause harmful interference to radio communications.

However, there is no guarantee that interference will not occur in a particular installation. If this equipment does cause harmful interference to radio or television reception, which can be determined by turning the equipment o and on, the user is encouraged to try to correct the interference by one or more of the following measures:

- Reorient or relocate the receiving antenna.
- Increase the separation between the equipment and receiver.
- Connect the equipment into an outlet on a circuit different from that to which the receiver is connected.
- Consult the dealer or an experienced radio/TV technician for help.

**WARNING:** Only peripherals complying with the FCC class B limits may be attached to this equipment.

Changes or modifications made to this equipment, not expressly approved by us or parties authorized by us could void the user's authority to operate the equipment. This device complies with part 15 of the FCC Rules. Operation is subject to the following two conditions: (1) This device may not cause harmful interference, and (2) this device must accept any interference received, including interference that may cause undesired operation.



#### EU Declaration of Conformity

**CE** Hereby, NuPrime Audio, Inc. declares that this device is in compliance with the essential requirements and other relevant provisions of Directive 2004/108/EC. The manufacturer of this product is NuPrime Audio, Inc., 30 N Gould St. Ste N, Sheridan, WY 82801,

USA. The Authorized Representative for EMC and product safety is NuPrime Audio, Inc., 30 N Gould St. Ste N, Sheridan, WY 82801,

For any service or guarantee matters please refer to the addresses given in separate service or guarantee documents.

#### For Customers in Europe



Disposal of Old Electrical & Electronic Equipment (Applicable in the European Union and other European countries with separate collection systems) This symbol on the product or on its packaging indicates that this product shall not be treated as household waste. Instead it shall be handed over to the applicable collection point for the recycling of electrical and electronic equipment. By ensuring this product is disposed of correctly, you will help prevent potential negative consequences for the environment and human health, which could otherwise be caused by inappropriate waste handling of this product. The

recycling of materials will help to conserve natural resources. For more detailed information about recycling of this product, please contact your local Civic Office, your household waste disposal service or the shop where you purchased the product.



#### **Safety Instructions**

There are two categories of Safety Instructions included in this manual:

- Product Warnings, (i.e., what must never be done to assure avoiding those hazards that
- could cause bodily injury or property damage); and
- User Directions (i.e., what must always be done to assure the safe use of your device).

The Safety Instructions contained in this manual have been categorized in accordance with the seriousness of the potential hazards through the use of Signal Words. Those Signal Words, and their intended meanings, are as follows:

**DANGER:** Indicates that a failure to observe the Safety Instructions could result in death or catastrophic bodily injury.

**WARNING**: Indicates that a failure to observe the Safety Instructions could result in serious bodily injury.

**CAUTION:** Indicates that a failure to observe the Safety Instructions could result in minor bodily injury or property damage.

**NOTE:** Designates important information that relates to activities and/or conditions that might result in loss of data and/or damage to your device.

#### Safe Use and Operation of Your Device

This equipment emits stray RF energy and will interfere with the reception of signals by airborne electronic navigational devices or medical devices. Do not operate this equipment near any sensitive medical devices.

#### WARNING: Use only grounded AC power cords.

Always immediately disconnect the power to the equipment in the event the device emits an unusual odor or sound or generates smoke.

beyond ordinary



**WARNING:** Never attempt to disassemble, repair or make any modification to your device. Disassembly, modification or any attempt at repair could cause bodily injury or property damage, as well as damage to the device itself.

**WARNING:** Your device is not a toy. Never allow children to play with your device. Misuse, rough or improper handling of your device by children could result in serious bodily injury for any of the enumerated safety warnings in this manual. In addition, always keep all accessories and components out of the reach of small children as small parts might present a choking hazard. Seek immediate medical attention if choking occurs or if any small part has been swallowed.

**CAUTION:** Never raise the sound volume level too high when using your device with earphones. An excessive sound volume level could cause damage to your hearing.

WARNING: To reduce the risk of re or electric shock, do not expose the unit to moisture or water.

Do not allow foreign objects to get into the enclosure. If the unit is exposed to moisture, or a foreign object gets into the enclosure, immediately disconnect the power cord from the wall. Take the unit to a gualified service person for inspection and necessary repairs.

Read all the instructions before connecting or operating the component.

Keep this manual so you can refer to these safety instructions.

Heed all warnings and safety information in these instructions and on the product itself. Follow all operating instructions.

Do not use this unit near water.

You must allow a minimum 10 cm or 4 inches of unobstructed clearance around the unit. Do not place the unit on a bed, sofa, rug, or similar surface that could block the ventilation openings. If the unit is placed in a bookcase or cabinet, there must be ventilation of the cabinet to allow proper cooling.



### NUPR i ME

Keep the component away from radiators, heat registers, stoves, or any other appliance that produces heat.

The unit must be connected to a power supply only of the type and voltage specied on the rear panel. Connect the component to the power outlet only with the supplied power supply cable or an exact equivalent. Do not modify the supplied cable.

Do not route the power cord where it will be crushed, pinched, bent, exposed to heat, or damaged in any way. Pay particular attention to the power cord at the plug and where the cord exits the back of the unit.

The power cord should be unplugged from the wall outlet during a lightning storm or if the unit is to be left unused for a long period of time.

Immediately stop using the component and have it inspected and/or serviced by a quali ed service agency if:

- The power supply cord or plug has been damaged.
- Objects have fallen or liquid has been spilled into the unit.
- The unit has been exposed to rain.
- The unit shows signs of improper operation.
- The unit has been dropped or damaged in any way





### **MUPRIME**

The NuPrime Evolution Stream is a high-performance music server that seamlessly integrates with HiFi systems and supports multiple streaming services. It features a low-power Intel CPU, audio-grade SSD, enhanced USB ports for audio and storage, and advanced noise-reduction technologies, including an ultra-low noise power supply and grounding design. Compatible with Roon Core and DLNA, it can be managed through the VitOS Manager app.

#### **Designed for Uncompromized Audio Performance**

The Evolution Stream is the perfect choice for music enthusiasts, offering seamless access to your digital music library whenever you desire.

- 1. Effortless Control & Seamless Performance Install and run multiple applications effortlessly for an uninterrupted experience. Manage your music server with ease using the VitOS Manager mobile app.
- 2. Precision Audio: Equipped with dual dedicated TCXOs (Temperature Compensated Crystal Oscillators), one for each Ethernet port, this system prevents clock signal interference, ensuring highly accurate timing. The 10MHz TCXO minimizes network latency and jitter, providing flawless audio playback.



3. Interference-Free Listening: EMI noise-filtering technology effectively eliminates electrical interference, ensuring a pure listening experience.

7



- 4. Optimized Storage: Equipped with a high-performance 250GB SSD optimized for VitOS and application storage, the all-flash drive delivers low latency and ample capacity. Performance is further enhanced by an EMI absorber and a dedicated power regulation circuit, isolating power noise for superior audio playback quality. We advise against expanding the internal storage, as using an off-the-shelf SSD may degrade performance. For users with large local music libraries, external storage is recommended.
- 5. Powerful Processing: The 4-core CPU enables seamless Roon Core DSP transcoding, handling PCM to DSD256 effortlessly.



- 6. DDR4 RAM: The system features low-power 32GB DDR4 memory modules, ensuring smooth performance.
- 7. High-Resolution Audio: Supports USB audio output with resolutions up to DSD512 and PCM 768KHz, delivering exceptional audio quality.
- 8. Enhanced USB Audio Output: Utilizes advanced high-frequency filters to reduce noise and enhance USB audio output quality with clean 5V power.
- 9. Player Port with Evolution Stream's subnet for highest possible performance between itself and a Player such as Stream-9 or DLNA clients.
- 10. External Storage Ready: High current USB ports for external storage.
- 11. Clock Upgrade Ready: The system supports an external 25MHz Word Clock input, with a gold-plated 10MHz port for superior accuracy.

beyond ordinary



- 12. Clock Source Flexibility: Includes an internal/external clock selector, allowing seamless switching between clock sources for optimal configuration.
- 13. Power Input Noise Filtering: Incorporates a high-frequency noise filter in the power input module, ensuring accurate signal transmission with minimal noise and perfect phase synchronization.



- 14. Dual Gigabit Ethernet Ports: Includes two Gigabit Ethernet ports: one for network connectivity and the other optimized for direct connection to an audio player.
- 15. Grounding terminal for dedicated ground connection to reduce power noise. Internal grounding adapter to reduce ground noise.





#### **User Guide**

#### **Front Panel**



#### 1 Power Button

Power Status Indicator
 When AC power is on, it shows White Light.
 When DC power is on, it shows Blue Light.

#### **Rear Panel**







#### ③ Player Port

Supports both 1000Mbps and 100Mbps Ethernet networks.

#### 4 Network Port

- Supports both 1000Mbps and 100Mbps Ethernet networks.
- (5) Capacity Expansion Port USB 3.1 (USB 2.0 compatible)
- 6 Capacity Expansion Port USB 3.1 (USB 2.0 compatible)
- ⑦ Clock Input

10MHz clock Input port (BNC interface, 50 / 75 ohm impedance auto-detection)

⑧ Clock Selector space(Slide the switch when the device is turned off) To use external clock, slides away from the INTERNAL label

To use internal clock, slides to the INTERNAL label

- DC Input
   5.5mm x 2.5mm DC 12V low noise power input
- 1) Type-C Interface Reserved interface
- 1) USB Audio Output Port
- ② Capacity Expansion Port For Storage USB 2.0
- (13) Maintenance Port

Only for engineers to maintain equipment, do not use

11



#### **Specifications**

- CPU: Intel Quad-core CPU J6413
- RAM: 32GB
- Storage: NVMe SSD: 250G installed
- Word Clock: Highly Accurate TCXO Clock
- External Clock Input Port: 10MHz x 1
- Ethernet: 1GbE x 2
- Expansion USB Port:
- USB 3.1 x 2
- USB 2.0 x 1
- USB Audio Output: Second Generation USB Audio Output with Improved Noise Reduction Enhancement
- Type-C: 1
- Multiple Audio Players Output Simultaneously: Up to 10
- PCM: Up to 768KHz 32-Bit
- DSD Playback: Up to DSD512
- Roon DSP Transcoding: Up to DSD256
- Dimension: 7.87(W) Inch X 2.56(H) Inch X 7.87(D) Inch (200(W) mm x 65(H) mm x 200(D) mm)
- Weight:10Kg
- Fuse : Fast Blow 2A

Warranty: 3 years.



#### System Setup

(!) Make sure audio devices are all powered off.

Connect Evolution Stream Network port to Nuprime SW Ultimate or WiFi router LAN port with an Ethernet cable. Connect USB Audio port to a USB DAC with the USB cable.



Using a low noise linear power supply instead of AC as power source

Connect the power adaptor to the circular power inlet in the rear panel.

Connect the power adaptor to the AC outlet with power cord (Make sure the power cord has been plugged into the power adaptor before plugging into the AC outlet on the well).



#### **Advanced Connection Diagram**



#### **Power On**

Turn on the Evolution Stream by pressing the power button on the front panel. The power LED will illuminate.



Power on other audio devices

#### Install"VitOS Manager"App on a Tablet or Mobile Phone





iPad / iPhone (iOS) Android Pad / Phone (Google Play)

#### Use"VitOS Manager" App to Control Evolution Stream

VitOS Manager allows users to control the network and system settings on devices running VitOS, with key functions such as network optimization, firmware update and service management.

By using "VitOSManager" app on a iPad/iPhone/Android Pad/Android Phone, which is connected to the same LAN, you are able to discover Evolution Stream, install Roon Server to Evolution Stream, view system status of Evolution Stream, Please refer to the official website for more instructions https://nuprimeaudio.com/

15



#### Use Mobile Device to Control Evolution Stream





#### **Device Search Guide**

If the device cannot be found when connecting, click the "Help" button.



Enter the "Discover Guide" interface, enter the IP address of the Evolution Stream device in the space marked at the bottom of the interface, and then click "Connect".





The connection to Evolution Stream is successful and the VitOS Manager main page is shown.

#### **Install Applications**

Before using the application, you need to confirm the installation status of the application. If "Running" is displayed, it means it has been installed. If "Not Installed" appears, click the corresponding application, and then click the "Install" button.





After installing the application, "Downloading" is displayed. Wait until the download is completed to "100%". If the status displays "Running", the installation is successful.



www.nuprimeaudio.com



#### Install"VitOS Orbiter "App on a Tablet or Mobile Phone





Android Pad / Phone (Google Play)



iPad / iPhone (iOS)

#### **VitOS Orbiter**

The VitOS Orbiter is a software application designed to act as a controller and player for music streaming services within the VitOS environment.

VitOS Orbiter User Guide :





#### **Application Introduction**

- Orbiter Plugin : Orbiter Plugin is an application plug-in that mainly builds music playback operations for VitOS devices. It is also an important program for VitOS Orbiter App to control VitOS devices.
- HQPlayer NAA : HQPlayer NAA (Network Audio Adapter) enables VitOS devices to act as network adapters for HQPlayer running on a PC or music server. In this case, music data processing is performed by HQPlayer, and the processed data is then streamed asynchronously over the network to the NAA interfaced with the DAC.
- Roon Server : Roon Server is a music management and playback solution. It can play music through audio streaming and provides rich music library browsing, search and recommendation functions. You can use it via the Roon App.
- Spotify Connect : To use the functions of Spotify Connect, you need to install or open the Spotify App. \* For details on additional streaming services, please visit the product page on our website.
- ReadyMedia : ReadyMedia (formerly known as MiniDLNA) is a DLNA server for VitOS devices with installed data disks. With ReadyMedia installed on this VitOS device, you can use DLNA-compatible devices or software to browse and play music on the data disk.
- DLNA Renderer : DLNA Renderer is a music playback application that is compatible with the DLNA/UPnP standard. You can control the DLNA renderer to play music from DLNA servers (such as MinimServer and ReadyMedia) through the DLNA controller.

Other Streaming Services: VitOS Orbiter supports Tidal Connect and QQ Music. Qobuz is accessible through Roon in the 2024 release and may become available directly in VitOS when Qobuz Connect launches in 2025. For the latest updates and potential additions of other streaming services, please visit nuprimeaudio.com.

21



#### How to use HQPlayer NAA for Evolution Stream



Before using HQ Player NAA

- 1. Please make sure that your computer has HQ Player 5 Desktop installed
- 2. Ensure that your mobile device has the latest version of the VitOS Manager application installed
- 3. And your computer, mobile device, and Evolution Stream need to be connected to the same network.
- 4. Make sure your Evolution Stream is connected to an USB DAC.

www.nuprimeaudio.com

beyond ordinary



# Step 1: Use vitos manager to control Evolution Stream , install HQPlayer NAA in Evolution Stream

- 1.1 Power on the Evolution Stream and use the vitos manager app on your mobile device to discover the Evolution Stream. Below is a screenshot of vitos manager discovery Evolution Stream page.
- 1.2 In the Applications section of the home page, check the status of the HQPlayer NAA. If the status is "Not Installed", you need to install HQPlayer NAA for this Evolution Stream. Click ">" to enter the HQPlayer NAA page.



- 1.3 Click "Install" to install HQPlayer NAA to this Evolution Stream.
- 1.4 Wait for the installation to complete, and the status of HQPlayer NAA will be displayed as "Running ", indicating that HQPlayer NAA has been started and running. The screenshot below shows the HQPlayer NAA page and home page.







1.5 In order for HQPlayer 5 Desktop on the computer to find the HQPlayer NAA of Evolution Stream, please make sure that Evolution Stream is not playing music in other apps. If the color of the "Stop play" Button on the HQPlayer NAA page is orange, it means that Evolution Stream is playing music in other apps, then you need to click the "Stop playing" Button. The color of the "Stop playing" Button is gray to indicate that the music has been stopped.

5		₹⊿0	2:16	▼⊿
÷	HQPlayer NAA	0	← HQPlayer	NAA 🕜
	Stop Restart	<u>أ</u>	Status: Run	ning Restart
Device N	lame ES-680041	2	Device Name ES-680041	2
Status		C		
Waiting fo	or HQPlayer connection		Status	O
			Waiting for HQPlayer connec	tion
USB DAC:	4 Amanero	O.	Audio Output Information USB DAC: Combo384 Amanero Audio Source: None	Details
In order for need to sto [Stop Playt	Ayback from another applica r HQPlayer NAA to be found by HQPla op playing music from other apps. Clic boack] button in this area to perform th a playing back. Stop Playback	iyer, you ck the	Stop playback from anot In order for HQPlayer NAA to be f need to stop playing music from [Stop Playback] button in this are Stop Playb	ound by HQPlayer, you other apps. Click the a to perform this action.



# Step 2: Use the computer's HQPlayer 5 Desktop application to control Evolution Stream to play music

2.1 HQPlayer 5 Desktop application download link: Https://www.signalyst.com/consumer.html Select the version corresponding to your computer to download

	StackAudio Link II
	T+A <u>SD 3100 HV</u> and <u>SDV 3100 HV</u>
	<ul> <li>totaldac d1-streamer</li> <li>exaSound PlayPointDM, Sigma Streamer, Gamma Server and Delta Server</li> </ul>
	excount <u>may ombai</u> , <u>ogna oreaner</u> , <u>oanna oerer</u> and <u>beta oere</u>
Cor	ntrol applications:
	HQPlayer Client (included, Windows/macOS/Linux)
	HQPDcontrol on Android and iOS
	HQplayerd controller
	Alchemy Desktop Roon
	10011
	e! If you have audio problems when using USB audio device with default settings, try easing buffer time to 100 ms. This will most likely help.
Qu	ick Start Guide
A re	ally brief quick start guide can be found here.
HC	Player 5 Desktop: 5.4.0
Do	vnload for Windows trial / update.
Do	vnload for arm64 macOS trial / update.
Do	vnload for x64 macOS trial / update.
Do	vnload for Ubuntu 22.04 / Linux Mint 21 (generic x64) trial / update.
Do	vnload for Ubuntu 22.04 / Linux Mint 21 (AVX2 x64) trial / update.
Do	vnload for Ubuntu 22.04 (Raspberry Pi 4) trial / update.
D	vnload for Fedora 37 trial / update.

www.nuprimeaudio.com



# **M** NUPRIME

2.2 Open the HQPlayer 5 Desktop application on the computer

5ong: 0/0/0 5ong	Remain     Total remain     Zo His finer     Adaptive gain     Adaptive gain
Song	Stroy
Song	

2.3 Select "File" In the upper left corner, and then click "Settings..." To open the "Settings" Page





2.4 On the "Settings" page, find the "Backend" option in the "Outputs" interface and select "NetworkAudioAdapter".

	Track: 00 / 00 Artist: Album:	Time: 00:00 Artist Comoser:						Time     Remain	e contraction
B>	Mode: (source) Filter: none Shaper: none Limited / Apod: 0 / 0	Settings     Inputs     Outputs     PCM     Output device settings	SDM Advanced				×	<ul> <li>Total remain</li> <li>20 kHz filter</li> </ul>	-3.0 dBFS
		Witcher Extension Witcher ASIO							Adaptive gain
entent source URI		NetworkAudioAdapter NetworkAudioAdapter IP Null output							* Browse
		Channels	Channel offset		SDM pack	Buffer time			
		2	• 0			Default Short buf	•		
		Default mode			Quick pause				
		[source] • EAdaptive rate							
		Vol Min	Vol Max		PCM gain compensation				
		-60.0dB	\$0.0dB	\$	0.00				
						ОК	Cancel		

2.5 After selecting "Networkaudioadapter" In the "Backend" Option, the "Device" Option will automatically find out the Evolution Stream device that can be connected. After selecting the Evolution Stream device, click "Ok" To set it to take effect.

Track: 00 / 00 Artist: Album:		A				Time: 00:00 Artist: Composer:					Time     Remain	
13 >	Mode: [source] Filter: none Shaper: none Limited / Apod: 0 / 0	Settings     X      Inputs Outputs PCM SDM Advanced  Output device settings								Total remain     Z0 kHz filter     Adaptive gain     -3.0 dBFS		
		Backend								-		
\Users\zyx162022\Des		NetworkAudioAda	apter						*	-	0	Browse
Length	Artist	Device								-		
		Evolution Str	ream						-			
		Channels 2		Channel offset		SDM pack		Buffer time Default	•			
		2	•	2wire		48k DSD		Short buf	•			
		Default mode Quick pause										
					Adaptive rate							
		Vol Min		Vol Max		PCM gain compensation						
		-60.0dB	•	0.0dB	0	0.00			÷			
								OK	Cancel			
		1								_		

www.nuprimeaudio.com



### **MUPRIME**

2.6 Click the "Browse..." Button to open the selected music content folder.



2.7 Select the folder where you save the music, and then click the "Select folder" Button.



www.nuprimeaudio.com

beyond ordinary

2.8 After importing the music file, select the music to start playing.

Track: 00 / 00 MAN NOT COLOR MAN Man Man Man Man Man Man Man Man				Timer (2010) Antal Company Deformer Sense: State Notice	* Tree - Remain - Solite State - Managemengen - Managemengen - Managemengen				
	V/In Mercial Ballia Concept Deven				0 (A)[]				
# Langth:	AG	Aller		long					
0.57 internal			Aydo Carceja Dano 17 - 16at 28Hz - 20Hz sama na	N-					
110 In Verse			Audio Dananya Densa 19-1-R, Dharoné Check can						
0.29 2m Marca			Analys Energy Denis 301 - 8.4, Depherit san						
0 0.41 Jer March			ALC Dars Departure						
02 050 - West			Cells Transfey						
00 1 04 Internet			Facel Agen Earthy						
00 0.47 1= V=			Mare Elev Dyterement						
00 0 38 In: Marco			Classical Rev. Actionity						
08 0.47 - Warst			View Bookly						
a 07 0.40 Jan Marco			Actar Pute						
(08.050 Jie Merid			Transat Series Totally						
(09.044 )= Vere			Complex Total Resultation						
11 150 Ser Veron			Guidean Amhanna						
11 053 Im Mercel			Large Gutdoor Igaale						
13 0.50 ille Marcol			reastronic Group Unity						
11.14) in Vent			had Selang						
14.057 De Mercel			Complete Torral Purity						
(15 1:52 lim March			Ensemble Opnamic Power						
(1) 0.23 Jan Marcol			Example Percession Dynamics						

2.9 Install and open vitos manager, "HQPlayer NAA" Will be displayed in the audio source on the home page, indicating that Evolution Stream is playing songs from HQPlayer NAA.



2.10 Click the button marked above. When the background color of the button is dark gray (as shown in the figure below), it means that the hqpdcontrol app on the mobile phone can control the playback of hqplayer. (note: If you do not use the mobile app to play, you can ignore this step)

	Track: 00 / 00 Artist Album Mode PCM Piter: poly-anc-gause-long Shaper: TDF Limited / Apod: 0 / 0			Time: 00:00 Avisit Composer Strop: Genix: Date Romyt	Time     Finne     Finne     Time     Time     Time     Z0 into filme     Adoptine gain     dob affirs
	Alim Merod Audio Concept Dem				O * Doors.
# Length	Ana	Album		Song	
0.57 /m Merce			Audio Concept Demo 17 - 16bit 22kHz - 20Hz ww		
0:06 /im Marco			Audio Concept Demo 39 - L-8_Chennel Checkwe	5	
0:20 Jim Merco			Audio Concept Demo 20 - R-L, Elephent.wav		
01 0:46 Sim Merod			Jazz Drum Dynamice		
02:050 /m Mercd			Cello Torolity		
03 1.04 Jim Merce			Factol Jhano Schality		
04 0.47 Jim Marod			Jazz Basz Dynamics		
25 2:30 7im Merod			Classical Bass Authority		
06 0:47 Jim Merod			Vocal Tonality		
07 0.40 Jim Merod			Acian Flute		
08 0.50 Jim Marco			Singural Stares Tonality		
09 0.44 Jim Marco			Complex Tonal Resolution		
10.150 Jim Merco			Outdoor Ambience		
11 053 Jim Merod			Large Outdoor Space		
12 9:50 Jim Merod			Harmonic Group Unity		
13 1.42 Jim Merod			Tonal Delicecy		
14 0.57 Jim Marod			Complex Tonal Purity		
13 1:12 Jan Marco			Ensemble Dynamic Power		
16 0.33 Jim Merod			Exotic Percussion Dynamics		



#### Reference:

Diagram of the connection of HQPlayer NAA and Evolution Stream





#### How To Use Roon Server on Evolution Stream

Before using Roon Server, please make sure your mobile device has Roon Remote app and VitOS Manager app installed. And make sure your mobile device is connected to the same network that Evolution Stream resides.

# Step 1: Install Roon Server to Evolution Stream, and configure Audio Selector in Evolution Stream.

Power on Evolution Stream and use VitOS Manager app with mobile device to discover the Evolution Stream. What below shows the screenshot of the VitOS Manager discover page.



Language English

When the Evolution Stream is found, click on "Manage" to enter the main page of this Evolution Stream



In the Applications section of main page, check the status of Roon Server. If the status is "Not Installed", you will need to install Roon Server to this Evolution Stream. Click on ">" to enter the Roon Server page. Click on "Install" to install Roon Server to this Evolution Stream.



34

Music Importer

Import music from external USB disk to Data Disk. >



Wait until the installation is finished and it shows the status of Roon Server is "Running", which indicates Roon Server is up and running. Below screenshots show the Roon Server page and main page Be noted to configure the Audio Selector to choose Roon Server as Audio Source. Click on "Change" and choose Roon Server to make Roon Server to use the USB DAC connected to this Evolution Stream.




### Step 2: Use Roon Remote app to control Evolution Stream to playback music

Use Roon Remote app with the mobile device to connect and control Evolution Stream. The following describes how to connect to Evolution Stream with Roon Remote app.

### Connect the Evolution Stream and login with Roon account

Open Roon Remote app and wait for Rhein Evolution Stream V2 being shown in the discover page. Click on "Connect" to connect to the Roon Server of Evolution Stream and enter the login page..

Click on "Connect" to enter the login

Enter the e-mail address and password of your Roon account and click on "Login" to enter the setup wizard to setup basic configurations.



## **MUPRIME**

### Enable the USB DAC connected to this Evolution Stream

Click on the Menu button at the upper-left corner to enter the menu. Click on "Settings" to enter the settings page. Below screenshots shows the menu. Slide the menu bar at the upper side to find "Audio" page header. Click on "Audio" to enter the audio setting page. Find the USB DAC connected to this Evolution Stream under the "Connected toCore" section and click on "Enable" to enable this USB DAC.



ାଧାରେ 💷 14:52	"ແຟຊີ <b>■</b> 0 14:52
≡ < Settings ■ Q ES-680041	ES-680041
Setup Play Actions Library Audio Displays Backups	ietup Play Actions Library Audio Displays Backups
General	Audio
Help Translate Roon!	This Phone C
English 🗸	ALP-AL00 ×
Core	
ES-680041 Disconnect 192.168.10.98 Signed in as	Connected to Core These devices are connected to your Core directly.
view Account Info	lan * Oo
Browsing Preferences	
Show hidden tracks and albums?	Nuprime USB Audio
Crying Cy lan	Crying Ciying Ciying Lin





### **Reference:**

Understanding the relationship between Roon Server and Evolution Stream The Evolution Stream with Roon Server installed, plays two roles in different scenarios. Below figures shows these two scenarios.



Scenario 2: Evolution Stream as Roon Server and Roon Player

inary

### How to use the Orbiter Plugin for Evolution Stream

Before using Orbiter Plugin, please make sure your mobile device has installed the latest version of VitOS Orbiter and VitOS Manager applications, and also make sure your mobile device is connected to the same network as Evolution Stream

# Step 1: Use VitOS Manager to control Evolution Stream , install Orbiter Plugin in Evolution Stream

1.1 Power on the Evolution Stream and use the VitOS Manager app on your mobile device to discover the Evolution Stream. Below is a screenshot of VitOS Manager Discover Evolution Stream page.

After finding the Evolution Stream, click "Manage" to enter the main page of the Evolution Stream.

After finding the Evolution Stream, click "Manage" to enter the main page of the Evolution Stream

3:00	♥⊿ 0	2:09	1	• •
	Pick a device to manage		Pick a device to manage	
	ES-680041 Manage Vrt0S-1.2.9671 192.168.9.5 Status <b>@</b> Ready	Į	ES-680041 Manage VI:05-1.2.9671 192.168.9.5 Status & Ready	
Langi	uage English >		Language English )	
39		www.nuprimeaudio.o	com	eyond ordinary

In the Applications section of the home page, check the status of the Orbiter Plugin. If the status is "Not Installed", you need to install the Orbiter Plugin for this Evolution Stream. Click ">" to enter the Orbiter Plugin page.



Click Install to install the Orbiter Plugin to this Evolution Stream.



40



1.4 Wait for the installation to complete, and the Orbiter Plugin status will be displayed as "Running ",indicating that the Orbiter Plugin has been started and running. The screenshot below shows the Orbiter Plugin page and home page. 1.5 Click the "Go" button You can directly jump to VitOS Orbiter and connect to control Evolution Stream





### Step 2: Use the VitOS Orbiter app to control Evolution Stream play music

2.1 Use the VitOS Orbiter app to control Evolution Stream to play streaming music or local music

2.2 After selecting music to play, open VitOS Manager, and the audio source on the home page will display " Orbiter Plugin ", indicating that Evolution Stream is playing songs from VitOS Orbiter.

to







#### **Reference:**

Orbiter Plugin and Evolution Stream Association diagram of





www.nuprimeaudio.com

### How to use Spotify Connect on Evolution Stream

Step 1: Install Spotify Connect in Evolution Stream and setup audio selector of Evolution Stream

First of all, you will need to have \*VitOS Manager" app installed in an iOS or Android device. And make sure the mobile device is connected to the same network that Evolution Stream resides in. Power on the Evolution Stream and open "VitOS Manager\* app to discover your Evolution Stream. Below figure shows the discover page of "VitOS Manager\* app.

☑ ■ ↓ ⊻ ▶ Pick a device	e to manage	
ES-680045 Vrt0S-1.2.96 192.168.9.5 Status @ R		Find the Evolution Stream and click on "Manage* to enter the main page of this Evolution Stream.
ES-680041 Vit0S-1.2.96 192.168.9.5 Status @ R	50 	
ES-680043 Vit0S-1.2.96 192.168.9.5 Status • R		
Language Engli		
44	www.nu	aprimeaudio.com beyond ordinary

Check the status of "Spotify Connect' in the "Applications" block. If the status is "Not Installed", you will need to install "Spotify Connect" to this Evolution Stream. Click the near the Spotify Connect to enter the "Spotify Connect' page.

Click "Install" button to install "Spotify Connect" to this Evolution Stream.



Wait until the installation process to be done and the 'Spotify Connect" page will show the running status of Spotify Connect is "Running', which means "Spotify Connect" feature is running. Below figures show the 'Spotify Connect" page and the main page.







Step 2: Use Spotify app to control Evolution Stream to play Spotify music.



Use your phone tablet or computer as a remote control for Spotify. Go to spotify.com/connect to learn how

The Spotift Software is subject to third party licenses found here: https://www.spotify.com/connect/third-party-licenses (https://www.spotify.com/connect/third-party-licenses).

47



### How To Use DLNA Renderer on Evolution Stream

Before using VitOS DLNA Renderer, please make sure your mobile device has DLNA related apps installed (recomme nded to use BubblelIP nP for An droid devices, mconnect for iOS devices, Audirva na for Mac OS devices, J River for Win dows devices). And also make sure your mobile device has VitOS Manager app installed and is connected to the same network that Evolution Stream resides.

# Step 1: Install DLNA Renderer to Evolution Stream, and configure Audio Selector in Evolution Stream.

Power on Evolution Stream and use VitOS Manager app with mobile device to discover the Evolution Stream. What below shows the screenshot of the VitOS Manager discover page.

0 ÷		<del>,</del> [	77%	14:17
	Pick a device to m	nana	ge	
	ES-680041 VitoS-1.2.9671		Manage	
	Intersection = 100,0000 = 100,0000 = 100,0000 = 100,0000 = 100,0000 = 10			

When the Evolution Stream is found, click on "Manage" to enter the main page of this Evolution Stream.



www.nuprimeaudio.com



In the Applications section of main page, check the status of DLNA Renderer. If the status is \*Not Installed",you will need to install DLNA Renderer to this Evolution Stream. Click on \*>" to enter the DLNA Renderer page. Click on 'Install" to install DLNA Renderer to this Evolution Stream.



49



Wait until the installation is finished and it shows the status of DLNA Renderer is "Running", which indicates DLNA Renderer is up and running. Below screenshots show the DLNA Renderer page and main page.

Be noted to configure the Audio Selector to choose DLNA Renderer as Audio Source. Click on "Change" and choose DLNA Renderer to make DLNA Renderer to use the USB DAC connected to this Evolution Stream.





### Step 2: Use DLNA app to control Evolution Stream to playback music

Use DLNA app (recomment: BubbleUPnR mconnect, Audirvana, and JRiver) with the mobile device to control DLNA Renderer in Evolution Stream. The following describes how to connect to Evolution Stream with BubbleIIPnP as an example:



In the "Now Playing" page, click this

In the "Select renderer' page, choose the Evolution Stream to play music with Evolution Stream.





### NuPrime's Limited Warranty and Limitation of Liabilities

### ADDITIONAL RIGHTS

For consumers, who are covered by consumer protection laws or regulations in their country of purchase or, if different, their country of residence, the benefits conferred by this warranty are in addition to all rights and remedies conveyed by such consumer protection laws and regulations. This warranty does not exclude, limit or suspend any rights of consumers arising out of nonconformity with a sales contract. Some countries, states and provinces do not allow the exclusion or limitation of incidental or consequential damages or allow limitations on how long an implied warranty or condition may last, so the limitations or exclusions described below may not apply to you. This warranty gives you specific legal rights, and you may also have other rights that vary by country, state or province. This limited warranty is governed by and construed under the laws of the country in which the product purchase took place.

#### LIMITED WARRANTY

For a period of TTHREE(3) YEAR from the date of retail purchase by the original end-user purchaser ("Warranty Period"), NuPrime warrants (in) this product against defects in materials and workmanship, and (ii) that each Product, unmodified and under normal use and conditions, will substantially comply with NuPrime' applicable written technical documentation for the Product. NuPrime reserves the right to make substitutions and modifications from time to time in the specifications of Products sold by NuPrime, provided that such substitutions or modifications do not materially affect overall Product performance.

If a hardware defect exists and a valid claim is received within the Warranty Period, at its option and to the extent permitted by law, NuPrime will (1) repair the hardware defect at no charge, using new or refurbished replacement parts, (2) exchange the product with a product that is new or which has been manufactured from new or serviceable used parts and is at least functionally equivalent to the original product, or (3) refund the purchase price of the product. NuPrime may request that you replace defective parts with user-installable new or refurbished parts that NuPrime provides in fulfillment of its warranty obligation. A replacement product/part assumes



the remaining warranty of the original product or ninety (90) days from the date of replacement or repair, whichever provides longer coverage for you. When a product or part is exchanged, any replacement item becomes your property and the replaced item becomes NuPrime's property. When a refund is given, your product becomes NuPrime's property.

### **OBTAINING WARRANTY SERVICE**

If you purchased the product in the U.S., deliver the product, at your expense, to any NuPrime Service Center located in the U.S. If you purchased the product outside of the U.S., deliver the product to any NuPrime Authorized Importer in the country where you purchased the product. Be aware, however, that not all countries have NuPrime Authorized Service Providers ('NASP') and not all Authorized Service Providers outside the country of purchase have all parts or replacement units for the product. If the product cannot be repaired or replaced in the country it is in, it may need to be sent to a different country or returned to the country of purchase at your expense for repair or replacement. If you seek service in a country that is not the country of original purchase, you will comply with all applicable import and export laws and regulations and be responsible for all custom duties, V.A.T. and other associated taxes and charges. Where international service is available, NuPrime may repair or exchange defective products and parts with comparable products and parts that comply with local standards.

You can always deliver the product to NuPrime's U.S.A or Taiwan service center for obtaining warranty service, however, you may have to pay for shipping cost.

NuPrime may send you user-installable new or refurbished replacement product or parts to enable you to service or exchange your own product ("DIY Service"). Upon receipt of the replacement product or part, the original product or part becomes the property of NuPrime and you agree to follow instructions, including, if required, arranging the return of original product or part to NuPrime in a timely manner.

When providing DIY Service requiring the return of the original product or part, NuPrime may require a credit card authorization as security for the retail price of the replacement product or part and applicable shipping costs. If you follow instructions, NuPrime will cancel the credit card



## NUPR i ME

authorization, so you will not be charged for the product or part and shipping costs. If you fail to return the replaced product or part as instructed or the replaced product or part is not eligible for warranty service, NuPrime will charge the credit card for the authorized amount.

### **EXCLUSIONS AND LIMITATIONS**

This Limited Warranty applies only to hardware products manufactured by or for NuPrime that can be identified by the "NuPrime" trademark, trade name, or logo affixed to them. The Limited Warranty does not apply to any non-NuPrime hardware products or any accessories, even if packaged or sold with NuPrime hardware. Non-NuPrime manufacturers, suppliers, may provide their own warranties. Other accessories distributed by NuPrime under the NuPrime brand name are not covered under this Limited Warranty. This warranty does not apply: (a) to damage caused by accident, abuse, misuse, misapplication, liquid contact, fire, earthquake, non-NuPrime products, or other external causes; (b) to damage caused by service performed by anyone who is not a NASP; (c) to a product or a part that has been modified without the written permission of NuPrime; (d) to consumable parts, such as batteries, or protective coatings designed to diminish over time unless failure has occurred due to a defect in materials or workmanship; (e) to cosmetic damage, including but not limited to scratches, dents, and broken plastic on ports; (f) to defects caused by normal wear and tear or otherwise due to the normal aging of the product; or (g) if any NuPrime serial number has been removed or defaced.

Important: Do not open the hardware product. Opening the hardware product may cause damage that is not covered by this warranty. Only NuPrime or a NASP should perform service on this hardware product.

This warranty and remedies set forth above are exclusive and in lieu of all other warranties, remedies and conditions, whether oral or written, express or implied. NuPrime specifically disclaims any and all implied warranties, including, without limitation, warranties of merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose. If NuPrime cannot lawfully disclaim implied warranties under this limited warranty, all such warranties, including warranties of



merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose are limited in duration to the duration of this warranty. No NuPrime reseller, agent, or employee is authorized to make any modification, extension, or addition to this warranty.

NuPrime is not responsible for direct, special, incidental or consequential damages resulting from any breach of warranty or condition, or under any other legal theory, including but not limited to lost profits, downtime, goodwill, damage to or replacement of equipment and property, any costs of recovering, reprogramming, or reproducing any program or data stored in or used with NuPrime products, and any failure to maintain the confidentiality of data stored on the product. NuPrime specifically does not represent that it will be able to repair any product under this warranty or make a product exchange without risk to or loss of programs or data.

Some states and provinces do not allow the exclusion or limitation of incidental or consequential damages or exclusions or limitations on the duration of implied warranties or conditions, so the above limitations or exclusions may not apply to you. This warranty gives you specific legal rights, and you may also have other rights that vary by state or province.

Proof of purchase in the form of a bill of sale or receipted invoice which is evidence that the unit is within the Warranty period must be presented to obtain warranty service.

Replacement as provided under this warranty is the exclusive remedy of the consumer. Nuprime shall not be liable for any incidental or consequential damages for breach of any express or implied warranty on this product. Except to the extent prohibited by applicable law, any implied warranty of merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose on this product is limited in duration to the duration of this warranty.

www.nuprimeaudio.com



